
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Thursday, April 10, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance……..…………………………………Board Member Jim Webster 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call .................................................................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None  
B. Presentations – JDC Audit, Debbie Jarvis, Director of Court Services 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – Joan Lodge, Rosecrance funded programs overview and impact, Pro 

Nancy Edwardsen, Litter cleanup by inmates, Pro 
 

6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
A. Approval of March 13, 2025 minutes  
B. Layover of March 27, 2025 minutes 

 
7. Consent Agenda….…………………………………………….………………….…… Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments shall lay over until 

the second board meeting after they are first introduced) 
 
9. Reports of Standing Committees…………..………………………………..…..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
A. Finance Committee…………………………………………………….John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 2  

2. Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for State’s Attorney VOCA Grant Renewal to be 
Laid Over 
 

B. Zoning Committee ....................................................... .Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report  
2. Resolution Granting Authority to the Winnebago County Board Chairman to Execute 

the Documents Necessary to Complete a Loan for $50,000 from the Revolving Loan 
Fund to Legend Home Health Care Professionals, LLC (Legend) 
 

D. Operations and Administrative Committee ........... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Awarding Landscaping and Grounds Maintenance Services 
3. Ordinance Amending Section 62-3 (Nepotism) of The Winnebago County Code of 

Ordinances to be Laid Over 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

G. Legislative and Lobbying Committee……………………….Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
Zoning Committee 

1. Z-02-25 A map amendment to rezone 0.64 +- acres from the RR, Rural Residential 
District (a sub-district of the RA District) to the RA, Rural Agricultural Residential District 
(a sub-district of the RA District) for the property that is commonly known as 8232 
Pueblo Drive, Rockford, IL 61103 in Owen Township, District 5, Laid Over from March 
27, 2025 Meeting. 

2. Z-03-25 A map amendment to rezone 1.71 +- acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the RR, Rural Residential District (a sub-district of the RA District) for the 
property that is commonly known as 1710 Centerville Road, Rockford, IL 61102 in 
Rockford township, District 1, Laid Over from March 27, 2025 Meeting. 

3. Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 4 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka a 
Solar Farm) on a 40.64 +- Acre Site commonly known as 5151 Auburn Street (PINS: 11-
17-203-001 & 11-17-203-002 and Part of PIN: 11-17-276-004), Rockford, IL 61101, in 
Rockford Township, District 5, Laid Over from March 27, 2025 Meeting. 

4. Committee Report 
 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 3  

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ......................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, April 24, 2025 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Approval of 
Minutes 



























CONSENT 
AGENDA 











Appointments 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



Ordinance Executive Summary
 

Prepared By:         Steve Schultz 

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    April 3, 2025  

Ordinance Title:      Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for State’s Attorney VOCA Grant Renewal 

Board Meeting Date:    April 10, 2025 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  Yes, through 12/31/24    Appropriation Amount:   $49,999 

If not, explain funding source:  Federal Grant Funding 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 60300 (State’s Atty Grants)/various/02120 (VOCA) 

FY2025 Budget Impact: $199,994 

Background Information:  The State’s Attorney office has historically received federal funding through 
the Illinois Criminal Justice Info Authority to provide services to the underserved population of victims of 
crime.  This grant is awarded on a calendar year basis.  The State’s Attorney Office received renewal 
funding for 2025 that has not been reflected in the current budget. 

Recommendation:    Finance Department recommends approval 

Contract/Agreement:   Not applicable 

Legal Review:   Not applicable 

Follow-Up:   Not applicable 



1 

2025 Fiscal Year Finance: April 3, 2025 
Lay Over: April 10, 2025 

Sponsored by:  Final Vote: April 24, 2025 

John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman 

2025 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 and recommends 
its adoption. 

Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for State’s Attorney VOCA Grant Renewal 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County State’s Attorney has historically provided services to 
the underserved victims of crime through grant awards received from the Illinois Criminal 
Justice Info Authority. The grant award was renewed for the 2025 calendar year; and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 at its September 26, 2024 meeting; 
and,  

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #25-013 State’s Attorney VOCA Grant Renewal. 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                                                                                                      PAUL ARENA 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

                                                                         CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 
 



4/3/2025
State's Attorney J Hanley

0303-State's Atty Grants Fund

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number

Project 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

60300 41110 02120 Regular Salary $31,521 $0 $31,521 $129,235 $160,756
60300 41221 02120 Life Insurance $91 $0 $91 $138 $229
60300 41231 02120 IMRF $0 $0 $0 $6,015 $6,015
60300 41241 02120 Payroll Taxes $0 $0 $0 $12,207 $12,207
60300 42110 02120 Supplies $0 $0 $0 $223 $223
60300 48211 02120 Health Insurance $13,842 $0 $13,842 $26,090 $39,932
60300 48220 02120 Indirect Costs $4,545 $0 $4,545 $26,086 $30,631

Revenue
60300 32110 02120 Federal Operating Grants ($49,999) $0 ($49,999) (199,994)                ($249,993)

$0
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Federal grant funding

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2025 budget:  $199,994

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

The State's Attorney office received a one-year renewal for their Victims of Crime Act grant funded through the Illinois Criminal Justice 
Info Authority effective 1/1/2025 - 12/31/2025.  The renewal status was unknown when the FY25 budget was created. 

2025-013

60300-State's Atty GrantsDEPT. BUDGET NO.

2025
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



GRANT SUMMARY WORKSHEET 

404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Prepared By: Brooke Mays 

Committee: Finance 

Committee Date: April 3, 2025 

Resolution Title: Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for State’s Attorney VOCA Grant Renewal 

Board Meeting Date: April 10, 2025 

All new grant awards must be approved through their respective Committees prior to presenting 
for Board approval. Those requiring a budget modification must also be approved by the Finance 
Committee. To provide the County Board with the information needed for compliance 
requirements, please provide a complete Committee and Board packet that includes this form, 
the Executive Summary, Resolution, and Award. 

Funding Information: 
Grant Period of Performance: 1/1/25 – 12/31/25 

Is match required?     yes    no 

- If yes, did you work with Accounting to determine match allocation?    yes    no 

Are Indirect Costs Allowable under the award?   yes    no 
- If yes, what is the granting agency’s allowable de minimis Indirect Cost rate?

Is the indirect cost included in the budget?    yes    no 
Indirect Cost Base includes: salaries, fringe benefits, travel, supplies, training, and up to the first $50,000 of each 
subaward. 

- If no, please explain:

Does funding agreement contain Special Conditions that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding?                                                                                         yes     no  

- If yes, please explain:

How many sub-awards are included in this award?    0 

- Do subawards/contracts contain Indirect Costs?    yes    no 
- If yes, please provide Indirect Cost rates and total Indirect applied to each subaward or

contract:

http://www.wincoil.us/


ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Committee Date: Monday, March 31, 2025 
Committee: Economic Development 
Prepared By: Chris Dornbush   

County Board Office 
404 Elm Street, Rm 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319 - 4225 | E-mail: boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov 

Document Title:  Resolution Granting Authority To The Winnebago County Board Chairman To 
Execute The Documents Necessary To Complete A Loan For $50,000 From 
The Revolving Loan Fund To Legend Home Health Care Professionals, LLC 
(Legend) 

County Code: 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., IGA 2014-CR-122 (original) & IGA Update 2016-CR-013 

Board Meeting Date: Thursday, April 10, 2025 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount:   $50,000 
If not, explain funding source:   
ORG - OBJ - Project Code:  
Fund available in fund #0307 (Revolving Loan Fund) 

Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

Background Information: 
Legend Home Health Care Professionals (Legend) is a newly established home health care agency 
owned by Nicole Erickson (100%). Legend’s will provide physical therapy, occupational therapy 
and medicines for patients who may need these services as long-term support. They will focus its 
services on dementia and psychological-challenged patients. Ms. Erickson has a bachelor’s degree 
with 18 years of industry experience as an employee and consultant. Legends are requesting 
$50,000 at 8% interest rate for 5 years from the Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund to assist 
in operating capital while she obtains her certification from Illinois to bill Medicare and Medcaid. 
She is expecting on receiving this at the end of April 2025, however these payments have a lag 
time that affects cashflow. This loan will assist in the creation of 5 FTE (full time equivalent) 
employees; besides herself, 1 registered nurse, 1 case manager, and 2 support staff employees 
within the first two years. It has a County investment of $10,000 per job created.  

Recommendation:  
Administration supports the recommendation as proposed with the terms stated by RLDC for the 
loan. 

Contract/Agreement: 
NA 

Legal Review:   
Yes 
Follow-Up: 
RLDC & staff normally update the entire Board on a regular basis.

http://www.wincoil.gov/
mailto:boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov


Sponsored by: John Sweeney   County Board Meeting April 10, 2025 

RESOLUTION 
OF  

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

2025 CR ______ 
 
 
RESOLUTION GRANTING AUTHORITY TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD 

CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE A 
LOAN FOR $50,000 FROM THE REVOLVING LOAN FUND TO LEGEND HOME 

HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONALS, LLC (LEGEND) 
 
WHEREAS, Nicole Erickson is the sole owner of the newly established Legend Home 

Health Care Professionals, LLC (Legend) and Nicole Erickson Consulting LLC, and Ms. 
Erickson has eighteen (18) years of experience in the home health care industry in the Chicago 
area; and  
 

WHEREAS, Legend’s will market their services for consultancy and home care health to 
the Rockford and McHenry County areas, which will focus on dementia and psychologically-
challenged patients; and 
 

WHEREAS, Legend’s will additionally provide physical therapy, occupational therapy 
and medicines for patients who may need these services as long-term support; and 

 
WHEREAS, Legend’s will work in conjuncture with Anam Care, whose owner, Bernie 

Marinelli is the mother of Ms. Erickson, by providing supplemental services to its patients; and 
 
WHEREAS, Legend’s is requesting fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) from the 

County’s Revolving Loan Fund for operating capital, that will assist Ms. Erickson while she 
obtains her certification from the State of Illinois to bill Medicare and Medicaid, which is 
expected to be received by the end of April 2025; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is expected that this loan will assist in the creation of five (5) additional 
full-time equivalent employees over the next two (2) years and assists in the creation of a female 
owned business; and 
 

WHEREAS, Legend’s is seeking a loan to assist with the operating capital, as 
recommended by the staff of Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC), fifty thousand 
dollars ($50,000.00), amortized at eight percent (8%) for five (5) years from the County of 
Winnebago's Revolving Loan Fund to Legend’s, secured by a subordinated lien on all business 
assets, as well as a personal guarantee by Nicole Erickson (co-signer of the Note) and company 
guaranty from Nicole Erickson Consulting, LLC. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to 



2 
 

execute the loan documents prepared by Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) and 
approved by the Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office for the loan of fifty thousand 
dollars ($50,000.00), amortized at eight percent (8%) for five (5) years from the County of 
Winnebago's Revolving Loan Fund to Legend Home Care Professionals, LLC (Legend), secured 
by a subordinated lien on all business assets, as well as a personal guarantee by Nicole Erickson 
(co-signor of the Note) and company guaranty from Nicole Erickson Consulting, LLC. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective on its adoption. 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago is directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this resolution to the Winnebago  
County Chief Operations Officer, County Finance Director, County Administrator, and the 
County Auditor. 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
        Economic Development Committee 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIR  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIR 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 

RAY THOMPSON  RAY THOMPSON 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 

CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Legend Home Health Care Professionals, LLC 

 
Friday, March 28, 2025    [ 1 / 3 ] 

Applicant: P.I.N.: 12-35-251-001 

Legend Home Health Care Professionals, LLC Principal / 
Officer (%): Nicole Erickson, Manager/Member (100%) 

Location Address: Website:    

1740 S. Bell School Road  
County Board 

District #: 
18 

Cherry Valley, IL 61016 
County Board 

Member: 
John Butitta 

Jurisdiction: Cherry Valley  

Type of Business: X New (Start-up)  Expansion (Existing) 

Industry: Home Health Care Industry 

 
 

Requested County Revolving Loan Fund: Employees: Current Projected 

Percentage
County: 50,000.00$             8.00% interest 66.67%

5 years
Owner's: -$                        0.00%

RLDC 25,000.00$             33.33%
0.00%
0.00%

Total Financing of 
Project:

75,000.00$             100.00%

Investment(s)

 

Full-Time 
Equivalent (FTE): 

0 5 

 

Part Time: 0  

Within the first 2 years of business 
operating, from the opening. 

Total:  

***Cost of County funds per projected job created: $10,000 
 
 
 

 
Uses of Loan Proceeds: 

 
• Loan proceeds will provide permanent operating capital. 

 
• Become certified by the State of Illinois to be able to bill Medicare and Medicaid. 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Legend Home Health Care Professionals, LLC 

 
Friday, March 28, 2025    [ 2 / 3 ] 

 

Description of Business & Project: 

Legend Home Health Care Professionals, LLC is a newly established home health care agency owned by 
Nicole Erickson.   Ms. Erickson was previously a part-owner of a home health care business in Chicago, 
Optimum Home Health Care Inc. and the sole owner of Nicole Erickson Consulting LLC.   She reports 18 
years industry experience. She has sold her interest in Optimum Health Optimum to avoid conflicts of 
interest. Optimum serves the City of Chicago whereas Ms. Erickson will focus her marketing and service 
on Rockford and McHenry County. Legend will provide consultancy services and health care 
professionals to provide services to her home-bound clients.    However, the services they provide such as 
PT, OT and medicines for their patients are not the personal care services provided by home health care 
companies that may stay with the patient for extended periods. 
 
Ms. Erickson is the daughter of Bernie Marinelli, the owner of Anam Care and an RLDC loan client.    
Anam provides institutional care for dementia and Alzheimer’s patients.     Legend will work with Anam’s 
residents to dispense pharmaceuticals, provide physical and occupational therapy and counseling to 
families and other supplemental services to Anam’s patients. Initially, Legend will locate and sublease 
space from Ms. Marinelli until it can find suitable office space. 
 
Ms. Erickson has specialized in marketing and operations management during her 18 years in the industry.    
While she is not a nurse, she will hire a full-time registered nurse to dispense medications and provide 
other services.    Ms. Erickson has a bachelor’s degree in business management from Phoenix University.   
The other three employees projected will include a case manager and support staff.    The average salary 
other than the RN will be around $23/hour.  
 

 

  
RLDC Recommendation: 

Staff recommends a $50,000 loan to be fully amortized over five (5) years at 8% for the following reasons: 
 

1) Participation in this project contributes to the projected creation of five (5) FTEs within two 
years. 
 

2) Participation in this project benefits a female-owned business. 
 
3) Ms. Erickson has previous experience (18 years) specializing in marketing and operations 

management in the home health care industry 
 
4) Legend will be partnering with Anam Care by providing supplemental services to its patients 

giving the business a running start. 
 
5) There reportedly is no similar service offered in the area as Legend will focus its services on 

dementia and psychologically-challenged patients. 
  

 



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Legend Home Health Care Professionals, LLC 

 
Friday, March 28, 2025    [ 3 / 3 ] 

 
 
 

Other Conditions: 
 Subordinated lien on all business assets.  Due to the nature of the use of proceeds, RLDC Staff does not 
believe the loan is adequately secured by project assets. 
 
 Ms. Erickson will be personally obligated for repayment as a co-signer of the Note. Company guaranty from 
Nicole Erickson Consulting LLC. 
 
 

Strengths & Weaknesses 
 
 
Strengths 
 
1) Participation in this project contributes to the projected creation of five (5) FTEs within two years. 
  
2) Participation in this project benefits a female-owned business. 
  
3)  Ms. Erickson has previous experience (18 years) specializing in marketing and operations management; and,  
 
4) there reportedly is no similar service offered in the area as Legend will focus its services on dementia and 
psychologically-challenged patients. 
 
5) Legend will be partnering with Anam Care by providing supplemental services to its patients giving the business 
a running start. 

 
 
Weaknesses 
 
1) The proposed loans are not adequately secured by project assets so that secondary repayment sources for 
the debt are minimal. 
 
2) Legend is a start-up venture and start-ups have a fairly high failure rate. Mitigating this risk is the experience 
and industry connections Ms. Erickson has forged over 18 years in the industry and her connection to Anam 
Care and its owner, Bernie Marinelli (Ms. Erickson’s mother), who is widely regarded for her knowledge and 
experience working with dementia and Alzheimer’s patients. 
 

 
 
Attachments: 

1. Illinois Secretary of State Corporation / LLC Certificate of Good Standing 
2. WinGIS Site Location 
3. Tax Information 
4. Revolving Loan Fund Summary Information 



Business Entity Search

Entity Information

Office of the Secretary of State

Entity
Name

LEGEND HOME HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONALS LLC

Principal
Address

2701 W 97TH STREET
EVERGREEN PARK,IL 608050000

File
Number

12307276 Status ACTIVE on 08-22-2024

Entity Type LLC Type of
LLC

Domestic

Org.
Date/Admission
Date

09-28-2022
Jurisdiction IL

Duration PERPETUAL

Annual
Report
Filing Date

08-22-2024
Annual
Report
Year

2024

Agent
Information

NICOLE ERICKSON
2701 W 97TH ST
EVERGREEN PARK, IL
60805-2733

Agent
Change
Date

09-28-2022

3/24/25, 2:24 PM Business Entity Search

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 1/2



Services and More Information
Choose a tab below to view services available to this business and more information about this
business.

Purchase Master Entity Certificate of Good Standing

Articles of Amendment Effecting A Name Change

Adopting Assumed Name

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered Office

3/24/25, 2:24 PM Business Entity Search

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 2/2

https://apps.ilsos.gov/llcartamendment/
https://apps.ilsos.gov/llcassumedadoptname/
https://apps.ilsos.gov/llcagentchange/


Business Entity Search

Entity Information

Office of the Secretary of State

Entity
Name

NICOLE ERICKSON CONSULTING, LLC

Principal
Address

2701 W 97TH ST
EVERGREEN PARK,IL 608050000

File
Number

04249992 Status ACTIVE on 01-02-2025

Entity Type LLC Type of
LLC

Domestic

Org.
Date/Admission
Date

01-29-2013
Jurisdiction IL

Duration PERPETUAL

Annual
Report
Filing Date

01-02-2025
Annual
Report
Year

2025

Agent
Information

NICOLE A ERICKSON
2701 W 97TH ST
EVERGREEN PARK, IL
60805-2733

Agent
Change
Date

05-09-2022

3/25/25, 8:07 AM Business Entity Search

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 1/2



Services and More Information
Choose a tab below to view services available to this business and more information about this
business.

Purchase Master Entity Certificate of Good Standing

Articles of Amendment Effecting A Name Change

Adopting Assumed Name

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered Office

3/25/25, 8:07 AM Business Entity Search

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 2/2

https://apps.ilsos.gov/llcartamendment/
https://apps.ilsos.gov/llcassumedadoptname/
https://apps.ilsos.gov/llcagentchange/


Business Entity Search

Entity Information

Services and More Information

Office of the Secretary of State

Entity
Name

ANAM CARE II, LLC

Principal
Address

7978 NEWBURG ROAD
ROCKFORD,IL 611080000

File
Number

04154835 Status ACTIVE on 10-11-2024

Entity Type LLC Type of
LLC

Domestic

Org.
Date/Admission
Date

11-20-2012
Jurisdiction IL

Duration PERPETUAL

Annual
Report
Filing Date

10-11-2024
Annual
Report
Year

2024

Agent
Information

BERNICE J. MARINELLI
7978 NEWBURG RD
ROCKFORD, IL 61108-6927

Agent
Change
Date

11-20-2012

3/28/25, 11:58 AM Business Entity Search

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 1/2



Choose a tab below to view services available to this business and more information about this
business.

MARINELLI, BERNICE J. 7978 NEWBURG ROAD
ROCKFORD, IL 61108

Managers ↑ Address ↓

Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries

Previous Next1

3/28/25, 11:58 AM Business Entity Search

https://apps.ilsos.gov/businessentitysearch/businessentitysearch 2/2



 

 
 

March 24, 2025

µ WinGIS  cannot and does not  warrant  the accuracy of : property
and boundary lines, dimensions of parcels and lots,  locat ion of
st ructures or improvements,  and topographi c or geologic

0 210105
Feet

SCALE: 1:1,200



1740 BELL SCHOOL RD

Pin Alt.Pin Property Size

1235251001 179A032G Sq. Feet: 49817 | Acres: 1.14

Owner Name and Address

RAC PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC,

1740 S BELL SCHOOL RD

CHERRY VALLEY, IL 61016

Taxpayer Name and Address

RAC PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC,

1740 S BELL SCHOOL RD

CHERRY VALLEY, IL 61016

Legal Description
(EXC THAT PT FOR RDWY) S 220 FT N 1435.14 FT W 230 FT (EXC S 10 FT E
45 FT W 90 FT) PT W 1/2 NE1/4 SEC SEC: 35 TWP: 44 RANGE: 2 ACRES:
1.15

Property Use

Use Code Description

0071 Commercial Office-Impr

Zoning Info

ZoningType: OF

ZoningDesc: Office

Township Info

Township Assessor Name

ROCKFORD Ken Crowley

School District

SchoolDist: ROCKFORD SCHOOL DIST 205

Fair Market Values

Year Fair Market Value Total Tax Bill Code

2023 $584,000.00 $17,623.74 378

Exemptions

No exemptions to display.

Sale History

| Winnebago Layers Internal Summary |3/24/2025

3/24/25, 2:12 PM Parcel Summary

about:blank 1/2



Date of Sale Sale Type Gross Selling Price Sale Type

10/27/2016 20161034611 $275,000.00 WD

8/20/2003 0389055 $400,000.00 TRD

Flood Hazard Zones

Flood Zone Type In/Out

X Out

3/24/25, 2:12 PM Parcel Summary

about:blank 2/2



 ABBREVIATED LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Paid on 
08/09/2024

179A032G 12-35-251-001

1740 S BELL SCHOOL RD
RAC PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC

8230

1

*$RE12352510011$*
Property Code

179A032G 12-35-251-001

Parcel ID

Paid on 
06/10/2024

CHERRY VALLEY IL  61016-

Phone: (_____) ______ - ________

Change of Address Form

New Name / Address

Date: _____/_____/_______

$0.0006/14/2024

TOTAL TAX DUE:

- 2023 Parcel ID: 12-35-251-001

  Taxing Body Current TaxCurrent RatePrior TaxPrior Rate

1,176.850.60461,331.610.6559WINNEBAGO COUNTY
299.950.1541368.280.1814- PENSION

170.900.0878195.100.0961FOREST PRESERVE
6.810.00356.500.0032- PENSION

187.450.0963217.640.1072ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP
0.000.00000.000.0000CHERRY VALLEY VILLAGE

1,738.980.89341,923.220.9473CHERRY VALLEY FIRE
1,735.080.89141,908.600.9401ROCKFORD PARK DISTRICT

0.000.00000.000.0000- PENSION

277.370.1425323.410.1593FOUR RIVERS SANITATION AUTHO
574.010.2949636.670.3136CHERRY VALLEY LIBRARY
63.260.032554.210.0267- PENSION

146.380.0752162.410.0800GREATER RKFD AIRPORT
24.330.012525.590.0126- PENSION

9,629.584.947211,286.155.5591ROCKFORD SCHOOL DIST 205
483.110.2482412.940.2034- PENSION

883.300.4538954.410.4701COMMUNITY COLLEGE  511
10.710.005512.380.0061- PENSION

215.670.1108238.140.1173ROCKFORD TWSP ROAD

Totals: 9.8794 20,057.26 9.0542 17,623.74

Township Assessor Phone Number: 815-965-0300
$17,623.74

Fair Market Value:

584,000

Location of

1740 BELL SCHOOL RD Property:

2

09/06/2024 $0.00

Property Code

179A032G

*$RE12352510012$*
Parcel ID

12-35-251-001

x
Board of Review Equalized Value =
Home Improvement Exemption -
Disabled Vet Adapted Housing Exemption -
Department of Revenue Assessed Value =
State Multiplier for Winn Cnty x
Revised Equalized Value =
Senior Freeze Exemption -
FAF/VAF Exemption -

-
-
-

General Homestead Exemption

194,647
0
0

194,647
1.0000

194,647
0
0
0

Board of Review Assessed Value 194,647
Township Equalization factor 1.0000

0Senior Citizen (over 65) Exemption
Disabled Person / Disabled Vet Exemption 0

-Returning Veteran Exemption 0

+
-
=
x
=

Non AD Valorem Tax 0.00
Abatements 0
Calculated Tax $17,623.73
Tax Rate for Tax Code 378 9.0542
Taxable Value 194,647

    Formula for Tax Calculation

RAC PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC
1740 S BELL SCHOOL RD
CHERRY VALLEY IL  61016-

1740 S BELL SCHOOL RD

CHERRY VALLEY IL  61016-

RAC PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC

THIS IS THE ONLY NOTICE YOU WILL
RECEIVE FOR BOTH INSTALLMENTS.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY TREASURER AND COLLECTOR Ph. No. (815) 319-4400 2023

(EXC THAT PT FOR RDWY) S 220 FT N 1435.14 FT W 230 FT (EXC S 10 FT E
45 FT 

Reason for Change Signature



ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP PROPERTY INFORMATION

Property Aerial Values & Exemptions Tax Bills

Property Location

Parcel Number:
12-35-251-001
Property Code:
179A032G
Address:
1740 S BELL SCHOOL RD
Cherry Valley, IL 61016
Taxpayer:
RAC PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC
1740 S BELL SCHOOL RD
CHERRY VALLEY, IL 61016

Legal Description

(EXC THAT PT FOR RDWY) S 220 FT N 1435.14
FT W 230 FT (EXC S 10 FT E 45 FT W 90 FT) PT
W 1/2 NE1/4 SEC SEC: 35 TWP: 44 RANGE: 2
ACRES: 1.15

SEC / TWP / [LOT] / RNG [BLK] / ACRES
035  044  002  1.15

Improvement Information

NBHD:
45868
Class:
COMMERCIAL
Land Use:
OFFICE
Building Name:
RAC ADJUSTMENTS INC
Zoning:
OF
Year Built:
1982
Exterior Wall Height:
12
Exterior Walls:
RIGID ASBSTS
Gross Building SF:
8,872
Land SF:
50,150

3/24/25, 2:19 PM Rockford Township

https://search.rockfordtownshipassessor.net/parcelsearch/sd/rt/assessordb/PropertyDetail.aspx?pn=1235251001 1/3



Sketch

Building Permits

Pick-Up Year BP Amount Purpose

2018 0.00 Reroof

2005 0.00 ELECTRICAL

Sales History

Date Type Amount Notes Deleted

10/2016 LAND & BLDG $275,000 10-16 WD N

08/2003 LAND & BLDG $395,000  N

3/24/25, 2:19 PM Rockford Township

https://search.rockfordtownshipassessor.net/parcelsearch/sd/rt/assessordb/PropertyDetail.aspx?pn=1235251001 2/3



COPYRIGHT © 2017 ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP ASSESSOR'S OFFICE ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

Notes

SDR OFFICE BLDG 5824 SF MAIN FLOOR, 3780 SF BSMT(616 SF UNFIINISHED/3,164 SF
FINISHED); VERT TRIM STUCCO GABLE ROOF CONCRETE FLOOR W-CARPET; 2021
REASSESSMENT; OR=2023 BOR FINAL DEC.
 

Information on this site was derived from data which was compiled by the Rockford Township Assessor's office solely for the governmental purpose
of property assessment. This information should not be relied upon by anyone as a determination of ownership of property or market value. No
warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the accuracy of data herein, its use, or its interpretation.

Although it is periodically updated, this information may not reflect the data currently on file in the Assessor's office. The assessed values may NOT
be certified values and therefore may be subject to change before being finalized for ad valorem assessment purposes.

3/24/25, 2:19 PM Rockford Township

https://search.rockfordtownshipassessor.net/parcelsearch/sd/rt/assessordb/PropertyDetail.aspx?pn=1235251001 3/3



Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program 
Overview 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 

Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) 
Manages the Revolving Loan Fund Program on behalf of Winnebago County 

• RLDC Agreement approved November 26, 2014 
• Amendment approved January 28, 2016 

John Phelps 
Executive Director of RLDC 
#815-987-8675 

http://rldc.us/index.asp 
120 West State Street, Suite 306 

Rockford, IL  61101 
 

REVOLVING LOAN FUND PROCESS IN A NUTSHELL 
(Assuming approval at each step) 

 

 

• Program is used for Gap Financing, examples of use... 
o Land & Building 
o Equipment & Machinery 
o Working Capital 

 
October 11, 2016 State of Illinois letter relinquishing reporting requirements. 

 

Business 
needs a 

loan 

RLDC 
reviews 

application 

Economic Development 
Committee  

Reviews loan 

County Board 
Reviews loan 

RLDC 
Loan is 

executed 

http://rldc.us/index.asp


Winnebago County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program 
Overview 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 

Origin of Funding for Revolving Loan Fund Program 

 

 

 

 

• NOT connected with the County’s General Fund, operating costs, etc. 
o It’s a stand-alone fund 

• No liability to Winnebago County 
• Fund generates interest 

o Interest covers management fees 
o Interest balance grows account for further community investment 

Activity Summary 

• Since September 28, 2015 through present (April 1, 2023) 
o 26 loans processed 

 Average number of loans per year 2.89 
o $1,590,500 loans invested into the community 
o Estimated 176.50 Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) jobs created 

• Average loan approximately... 
o Amount $61,200 

 Loan amounts have ranged from $17,500 to $200,000 
o Interest Rate 6.39%  

 Interest rates have ranged from 5.0% to 9.0% 
o Year (term) length 6.73 

 Loan (term) lengths have ranged from 5 to 10 years 
 At times may be amortized out longer, but with balloon payment 

U.S. Department of 
Housing & Urban 

Development  
(HUD) 

State of Illinois 
Department of 

Commerce & Community 
Agency 
 (DCCA) 

State of Illinois 
Department of 

Commerce & Economic 
Opportunity 

 (DCEO) 

Winnebago County 
Economic 

Development 
Committee 

(EDC) 

 
 
 

 
DCCA turned into DCEO 



OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department on behalf of Facilities 
Committee Name: Operations & Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: April 3, 2025 
Board Date:  April 10, 2025 
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Landscape and Ground Maintenance Services 

Budgeted? YES   Appropriation Amount: $43,226 Annually 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: Each department use their own funds    Descriptor: 

 

Background Information:  The previous Landscape and Ground Maintenance contract was 
expiring in the spring of 2024. The Purchasing and Facilities Department went out for bid on this 
countywide service. This service encompasses over 10 county locations and lots.    

The invitation for bid was made available on February 17, 2025.  Two mandatory pre-bid meetings 
were conducted where eleven (11) vendors attend one of the two meetings.  This resulted in 
receiving seven (7) completive bid submittals with lowest responsible bidder being Elites Lawncare 
and Snow Removal, out of Rockford, Illinois.  

VENDOR

Lawncare 
By 

Walter 
Rockford, 

IL 

JJ PARIS, 
INC 

Rockford, 
IL    

CMM 
Environment
al Rockford, 

IL 

Elites 
Lawncare 
and Snow 
Removal 
Rockford, 

IL 

Boreas 
Midwest 
LLC South 
Beloit, IL 

BL 
Wellwood 
Services 
Rockford 

IL 

Langton 
Group 

Woodstock 
IL 

Full-Season Landscaping 
Services Price: (labor, 

equipment, and 
materials) 

$57,690 $49,000 $175,311 $43,226 $142,000 $53,650 $95,701 

Previously, the county was anticipating $42,041 in annual expenses on full landscaping services. 

Recommended By:  It is recommended by Shawn Franks, Director of Facilities, that the County 
awards Completive Bid #25B-2391 Elites Lawncare and Snow Removal, for a four-year (4) contract 
term based on pricing and conditions in Resolution Exhibit A.   

Follow-Up Steps: The Facilities Department will work with the successful vendor on the annual 
service and evaluate.  



 
County Board Meeting: April 10, 2025 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2025 CR 
 

 RESOLUTION AWARDING LANDSCAPE AND GROUND MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 

Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, The Winnebago County Facilities Department is in need of landscaping 
and grounds services for 10 plus county wide locations and; 
 

WHEREAS, IFB was issued for #25B-2391 for Landscape and Ground Maintenance. 
This resulted in 7 competitive bids received and; 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (Resolution Exhibit A) for the 
aforementioned purchase and recommends awarding to:  

 

ELITES LAWNSCARE AND SNOW REMOVAL  
2605 Pamela Ave, Suite A 

Rockford, IL 61109 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a County 
Purchase Order, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to Elites Lawncare and Snow 
Removal, 2605 Pamela Ave, Suite A, Rockford, IL 61109. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the States Attorney Office, Director 
of Purchasing, Finance Director, Facilities Director, County Board Office and County Auditor.   

                                 
 



 
Respectfully Submitted, 

          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR
Lawncare By 

Walter 

Rockford, IL 

JJ PARIS, INC 

Rockford, IL  

CMM 

Environmental 

Rockford, IL 

Elites 

Lawncare and 

Snow 

Removal 

Rockford, IL

Boreas Midwest 

LLC South Beloit, 

IL

BL Wellwood 

Services 

Rockford IL

Langton 

Group 

Woodstock IL

Full-Season Landscaping Services Price: 

(labor, equipment, and materials)
$57,690 $49,000 $175,311 $43,226 $142,000 $53,650 $95,701

Yearly % Increase 2% 2% 3% 8% 3% 1% 3%

Year Two $58,844 $49,980 $180,570 $46,684 $146,260 $54,187 $98,572

Year Three $60,021 $50,980 $185,987 $50,419 $150,648 $54,728 $101,529

Year Four $61,821 $51,999 $193,427 $54,452 $155,167 $55,276 $104,575

Anticipated Increases over 4 years: $238,376 $201,959 $735,296 $194,781 $594,075 $217,841 $400,377

Tree placement or removal $60 $73 $120 $70 $215 $25 $96

Shrub placement or removal $60 $73 $70 $70 $200 $25 $96

Sod Replacement $60 $73 $70 $70 $175 $25 $96

Stump Grinding $120 $125 $120 $180 $175 $50 $180

Bush Hog work $95 $125 $120 $85 $175 $50 $250

Mulch by the yard $70 $40 $132 $125 $90 $65 $80

SUPPLEMENTARY LANDSCAPE & MAINTENANCE SERVICES – HOURLY RATE

       MARCH 12, 2025 AT 11:00 AM

            25B-2391 LANDSCAPING AND GROUND MAINTENANCE

   BID TAB - Landscape and Ground Maintenance

Resolution Exhibit A



County Board Meeting 
    April 10, 2025 

ORDINANCE 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2025 CO 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 62-3 (NEPOTISM) OF THE WINNEBAGO
COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, desires to amend its 
Nepotism Policy, as currently contained in Chapter 62, Article I, Section 62-3 of the Winnebago 
County Code of Ordinances to make it less restrictive; and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board deems it necessary and appropriate to amend 
Section 62-3 (Nepotism) of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 62, Article I, Section 62-3 of the Winnebago County Code of 
Ordinances, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 62-3. - Nepotism. 

(a) Policy. It is the County of Winnebago's intent to recruit, hire, promote, compensate,
transfer, reward, and discipline on the basis of individual merit in order to avoid the suggestion of 
favoritism or bias in the making of such employment decisions. 

(b) Scope. This policy is intended to apply to every employee of Winnebago County.

(c) Definitions and procedure.
(1) This policy applies to employees who are related as follows:

i) Family member: spouse  (including those relationships resulting from a lawful
marriage, a civil union and/or other similar legal relationship recognized by applicable
law), child, parent, brother, sister, grandparent, grandchild, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew,
as well as in-law and step-relative.
ii) Members of the same household: an individuals residing in the same residence as
another employee of the County of Winnebago.
iii) Employment decision: recruitment, hiring, promotion, compensation, transfer,
reward, or discipline. 
iv) Unless otherwise defined by state law, nepotism is the making of an employment
decision in regard to a family member and/or a member of the same household. 

(d) In making an employment decision the County shall exercise its discretion impartially on
the basis of merit and shall avoid nepotism. 



 
(e2) Employees who are so related may be employed by the County of Winnebago as long as 

they are not under the direct supervision of another related employee who has direct control or may 
influence employment decisions affecting wages, work hours and other conditions of employment. 

 
(3) Any employee who believes that they have a relationship that results in a violation of this 

policy must immediately report the circumstances to the employee's department head or to the director 
of human resources of the county. Failure of any employee in a relationship to report a violation of 
this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. Upon notification of an 
employment relationship that violates this policy, the County of Winnebago will use its best efforts 
to affect a transfer, wherever possible. 

 
(4) Any person in a relationship, as defined in subsection (c)(1) above, which is with an elected 

member of the Winnebago County Board, the county board chairman, employees of the county board 
office, or employees of the county human resource office shall not be hired for any position in 
Winnebago County. 

 
(5) Employees who are in a relationship, as defined in subsection (c)(1) above, which existed 

prior to the adoption of this policy shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the prior nepotism 
policy. 

(Ord. No. 88-CO-34, § II(B), 6-23-88; Ord. No. 2017-CO-034, 39-17) 
 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon signing. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 

prepare and deliver a copy of this Ordinance to the County Administrator, the County Human 
Resources Director, and the County Board Office. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

           Respectfully submitted, 
                                                             OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 



AGREE       DISAGREE 

 
__________________________________       __________________________________  
Keith McDonald, Chair                                  Keith McDonald, Chair 
 
_________________________________         __________________________________ 
Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chair        Valerie Hanserd, Vice Chair     
 
_________________________________         __________________________________ 
Paul Arena                   Paul Arena          
 
_________________________________         __________________________________ 
John Butitta        John Butitta    
 
__________________________________       __________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                                     Joe Hoffman 
  
__________________________________       __________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                              Jaime Salgado                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
__________________________________       __________________________________ 
Michael Thompson                             Michael Thompson 

 
 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _________________, 2025. 
 

                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the 

     County Board of the County of    
     Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTEST: 
 

______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 



 

 

 
    Created: 2024-11-21 14:01:56 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 61) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 62-3. Nepotism. 

(a) Policy. It is the County of Winnebago's intent to recruit, hire, promote, compensate, transfer, reward, and 
discipline on the basis of individual merit in order to avoid the suggestion of in the making of such decisions.  

(b) Scope. This policy is intended to apply to every employee of Winnebago County.  

(c) Definitions and procedure. 

(1) This policy applies to employees who are related as follows:  

Family member: spouse (including those relationships resulting from a lawful marriage, a civil union 
and/or other similar legal relationship recognized by applicable law), child, parent, brother, sister, 
grandparent, grandchild, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, as well as in-law and step-relative.  

Members of the same household: individuals residing in the same residence as another employee of 
the County of Winnebago.  

(2) Employees who are so related may be employed by the County of Winnebago as long as they are not 
under the direct supervision of another related employee who has direct control or may influence 
employment decisions affecting wages, work hours and other conditions of employment.  

(3) Any employee who believes that they have a relationship that results in a violation of this policy must 
immediately report the circumstances to the employee's department head or to the director of human 
resources of the county. Failure of any employee in a relationship to report a violation of this policy 
may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. Upon notification of an employment 
relationship that violates this policy, the County of Winnebago will use its best efforts to affect a 
transfer, wherever possible.  

(4) Any person in a relationship, as defined in subsection (c)(1) above, which is with an elected member of 
the Winnebago County Board, the county board chairman, employees of the county board office, or 
employees of the county human resource office shall not be hired for any position in Winnebago 
County.  

(5) Employees who are in a relationship, as defined in subsection (c)(1) above, which existed prior to the 
adoption of this policy shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the prior nepotism policy.  

(Ord. No. 88-CO-34, § II(B), 6-23-88; Ord. No. 2017-CO-034, 39-17) 

 









UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
ZONING COMMITTEE 

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
April 10, 2025 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

  PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

TO BE VOTED ON: 

1. Z-02-25 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE 0.64 +- ACRES FROM THE RR, RURAL
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) TO THE RA,
RURAL AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA
DISTRICT) requested by Nathan Asbury, Property Owner, for the property that is commonly
known as 8232 Pueblo Drive, Rockford, IL 61103 in Owen Township.
Part of PIN:  07-13-176-011    C.B. District:     5
Lesa Rating: NA             Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES
 ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL (7-0)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL (6-0)

2. Z-03-25 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE 1.71 +- ACRES FROM THE AG,
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT TO THE RR, RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT
(A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) requested by Michael Groves, Property Owner,
for the property that is commonly known as 1710 Centerville Road, Rockford, IL 61102 in
Rockford Township.
PINS:  11-29-302-003 and 11-29-302-004    C.B. District:     1
Lesa Rating: Low             Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES
ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL (7-0)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL (6-0)

3. ORDINANCE GRANTING SITE APPROVAL FOR A 4 MW COMMERCIAL SOLAR
ENERGY FACILITY (AKA A SOLAR FARM) ON A 40.64 +- ACRE SITE COMMONLY
KNOWN AS 5151 AUBURN STREET (PINS: 11-17-203-001 & 11-17-203-002 and Part of
PIN: 11-17-276-004), ROCKFORD, IL 61101, IN ROCKFORD TOWNSHIP, District 5,
requested by Blue Aster Solar, LLC (an indirect subsidiary of Trajectory Energy Partners, LLC),
Lessee, represented by James Rodriguez, Attorney and Mack Gapinski, Project Manager.
ZBA RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL w/ZBA AMENDMENTS (4-3)
ZC RECOMMENDATION:  APPROVAL w/ZBA AMENDMENTS (6-0)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

4. COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not
intended as an official public notice):

• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA)
meeting is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, May 13, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. in
Room 303 of the County Administration Building.

• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is
tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, April 23, 2025, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the
County Administration Building.





















NEW BUSINESS 



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259  

Announcements & Communications 
Date: April 10, 2025 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 

County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 

Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission the following:

a. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2, and Byron Station, Units Nos, 1 and 2-Audit
Summary for License Amendment Request Regarding Revision of Technical
Specifications 3.7.15, “Spent Fuel Pool Boron Concentration, “3.7.16, “Spent Fuel
Assembly Storage, and 4.3.1 “Fuel Storage, Criticality” (EPID L-2023-LLA-0136)

b. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2, and Byron Station, Units 1 and 2-Request for
Withholding Information from Public Disclosure (EPID L-2024-LLR-0066)

c. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2, and Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2-Issuance
of Amendment Nos. 238, 238, 237, and 237 Regarding Removal of Technical
Specifications Analytical Method 5.6.b.5 (EPID L-2024-LLA-0055)

d. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; and Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2-Issuance
of Alternative Requests 14R-19 and 14R-26 Associated with the Fourth Inservice
Testing Intervals (EPID L-2024-LLR-0066)

e. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2, and Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2-Correction
to Safety Evaluation Issued for Amendment Nos. 237, 237, 236, and 236 Regarding
Spent Fuel Pool Criticality Analysis (EPID L-2023-LLA-0136)

http://www.wincoil.us/
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259  

 

 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency a 
Revised Public Notice of Class 2 Permit Modification Approval:  
 
1418210001-Ogle County 
BFI-Davis Junction Landfill-Phase 1 
ILD980700751 
Log No. B-142R2-M-R(Reissued) 
RCRA Permit-24A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance for a Budget Amendment for State's Attorney VOCA Grant Renewal
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Granting Authority to Winnebago County Board Chairman to Execute Documents Necessary to Complete a Loan for $50,000 from RLF to Legend Home Health Care Professionals, LLC 
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Awarding Landscape & Ground Maintenance Services
	Ordinance Amending Section 62-3 (Nepotism) of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances
	Unfinished Business
	Zoning Committee
	Ordinance Granting Site Approval for a 4 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (AKA a Solar Farm) on a 40.64 +-Acre Site Commonly Known as 5151 August Street
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



